

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE**Sixtieth Legislative Assembly**

* * * * *

Bismarck, January 12, 2007

The House convened at 12:00 p.m., with Speaker Delzer presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rep. Koppelman, District 13, West Fargo.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representative Gulleason.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER**RULES OF DECORUM**

1. No food is permitted on the floor of the House when the House is convened.
2. Photographs and video camera taping are not permitted while the House is in session. This includes the taking of pictures with cell phones. Members of the press are the only exception.
3. No one is permitted to sleep or rest in a prone position on the seats which line both sides of Memorial Hall between the House and Senate Chambers.
4. Every member must vote if they are in the House Chamber during a roll call vote.
5. When a roll call vote is taken, every member not at their seat shall call out their name and vote in a voice loud enough for the Speaker to hear. The majority and minority leader and their assistants are exempt from the provisions of this rule.
6. During debate, members are to be attentive and quiet. Noise behind the rail shall be held to a minimum.
7. No member shall have more than one guest seated with the member during floor debate. Each member has one guest pass.
8. No one is permitted to visit or lean over the back railing while the House is in session.
9. The Sergeant-at-Arms shall clear the floor of the House Chamber in front of the railing of all persons, except legislators, legislative employees, legislative guests, former members of the Legislative Assembly, and members of the press, during the time period commencing one hour before the House convenes on any legislative day until the House recesses for that calendar day.
10. Tour groups are not allowed at the front desk area.
11. Legislators and employees shall be suitably attired. Men must wear a sport coat and tie at all times when on the House floor.
12. When a legislator is speaking, the Seargeant-at-Arms will not allow guests to enter that section.
13. When the Speaker is putting the question, no member shall walk out or across the floor of the House.
14. When a member is speaking, no person shall pass between the person speaking and the chair.
15. A member desiring to speak shall turn on the speak light, rise and respectfully address the Speaker. The member shall remain in place before preceeding to speak until recognized by the chair.
16. Visitors sitting in the lower tier of seats in the House balcony shall not touch, lean over, place objects on, or put their feet on the brass railings.

17. While the House is convened, no person shall read newspapers or other large publications in a conspicuous manner.

18. All persons shall wear identification badges while in the House Chamber or in the employ of the House.

19. All materials placed on desks must be authorized by a House member or individually addressed and mailed to each member.

20. House Rule 306: No member may speak more than twice on the same subject nor more than once until every member who wishes to speak has spoken. Exceptions to this rule are: the person carrying the bill, committee chairman, floor leaders or bill sponsor.

21. Cell phones **must** be turned **off/muted** while the House is in session. Taking pictures with a cell phone is prohibited.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that HB 1093, which is on the Eleventh order, be rereferred to the **Appropriations Committee**, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Rep. Monson's motion, HB 1093 was rereferred.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that HB 1226 be returned to the House floor from the **Political Subdivisions Committee** and be rereferred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee**, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Rep. Monson's motion, HB 1226 was rereferred.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that HB 1340 be returned to the House floor from the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee** and be rereferred to the **Judiciary Committee**, which motion prevailed. Pursuant to Rep. Monson's motion, HB 1340 was rereferred.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that the rules be suspended after action taken on the Sixth order, HB 1040 be placed on the Eleventh order, as amended, for immediate second reading and final passage, which motion prevailed.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

SPEAKER DELZER DEEMED approval of the amendments to HB 1029, HB 1040 and HB 1122.

HB 1029, HB 1040 and HB 1122, as amended, were placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1040: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 12.1-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to disorderly conduct at a funeral; to provide a penalty; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Haas; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Herbel; Hofstad; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Ruby; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Solberg; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Delzer

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gulleon

HB 1040 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that the rules be suspended and Engrossed HB 1040 be messaged to the Senate immediately, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1082: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 5-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to alcohol without liquid devices; and to provide a penalty.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 91 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Haas; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Herbel; Hofstad; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Ruby; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Solberg; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Delzer

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gulleeson; Keiser; Kelsch, R.

Engrossed HB 1082 passed and the title was agreed to.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1134: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 44-04-18.14 and subsection 3 of section 52-01-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to release and use of information provided to the followup information on North Dakota education and training system.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 90 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Haas; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Herbel; Hofstad; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Ruby; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Solberg; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Delzer

NAYS: Mueller

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Gulleeson; Keiser; Kelsch, R.

Engrossed HB 1134 passed and the title was agreed to.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1136: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 23-07-17.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to circumstances when children's immunization requirements may be waived; and to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 23-07-17.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to children's required immunizations for attending school.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Haas; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Hofstad; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Ruby; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Solberg; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Delzer

NAYS: Bellew; Froelich; Heller; Kerzman

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Guleson; Keiser; Kelsch, R.

Engrossed HB 1136 passed and the title was agreed to.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1139: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 57-15-06.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to county farm-to-market road tax levies; and to provide for retroactive application.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 91 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Haas; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Herbel; Hofstad; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Ruby; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Solberg; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Delzer

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Guleson; Keiser; Kelsch, R.

HB 1139 passed and the title was agreed to.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, the emergency clause carried, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1040.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed, the emergency clause carried, and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1076.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: HB 1028, HB 1035, HB 1053, HB 1059, HB 1062, HB 1073, HB 1075, HB 1096, HB 1097, HB 1098, HB 1102.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed, the emergency clause carried, and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2099, SB 2113, SB 2120, SB 2130.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on: SB 2065, SB 2067, SB 2071, SB 2074, SB 2085, SB 2089, SB 2091, SB 2093, SB 2094.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the absent member be excused, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House be on the Fifth, Ninth, and Thirteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Monday, January 15, 2007, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1025: Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman) recommends **DO NOT PASS** (11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1025 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1055: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1055 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 5, line 1, remove "Glutethimide."

Page 5, line 2, remove "k."

Page 5, line 3, replace "l. Levo-alphaethylmethado" with "k. Levo-alphaethylmethadol"

Page 5, line 4, replace "m." with "l."

Page 5, line 5, replace "n." with "m."

Page 5, line 6, replace "o." with "n."

Page 5, line 7, replace "p." with "o."

Page 5, line 8, replace "q." with "p."

Page 5, line 9, replace "r." with "q."

Page 5, line 11, replace "s." with "r."

Page 5, line 12, replace "t." with "s."

Page 5, line 13, replace "u." with "t."

Page 5, line 14, replace "v." with "u."

Page 5, line 15, replace "w." with "v."

Page 5, line 16, replace "x." with "w."

Page 5, line 17, replace "y." with "x."

Page 5, line 18, replace "z." with "y."

Page 5, line 19, replace "aa." with "z."

Page 5, line 20, replace "bb." with "aa."

Page 5, after line 27, insert:

"b. Glutethimide."

Page 5, line 28, overstrike "b." and insert immediately thereafter "c.", remove the overstrike over "~~Pentobarbital~~", and remove "Glutethimide"

Page 5, line 29, after "e." insert "d." and remove the overstrike over "~~Phencyclidine~~."

Page 5, line 30, after "~~d~~:" insert "e:" and remove the overstrike over "~~Secobarbital~~:"

Page 7, line 27, remove "g:" and overstrike "Glutethimide."

Page 7, line 28, replace "h:" with "g:"

Page 7, line 29, replace "i:" with "h:"

Page 7, line 30, replace "j:" with "i:"

Page 7, line 31, replace "k:" with "j:"

Page 8, line 1, replace "l:" with "k:"

Page 8, line 2, replace "m:" with "l:"

Page 8, line 3, replace "n:" with "m:"

Page 8, line 4, replace "o:" with "n:"

Page 13, line 6, remove the overstrike over "~~m~~-Clonazepam."

Page 13, line 7, remove the overstrike over "~~n~~:" and remove "m:"

Page 13, line 8, remove the overstrike over "~~o~~:" and remove "n:"

Page 13, line 9, remove the overstrike over "~~p~~:" and remove "o:"

Page 13, line 10, remove the overstrike over "~~q~~:" and remove "p:"

Page 13, line 11, remove the overstrike over "~~r~~:" and remove "q:"

Page 13, line 12, remove the overstrike over "~~s~~:" and remove "r:"

Page 13, line 13, remove the overstrike over "~~t~~:" and remove "s:"

Page 13, line 14, remove the overstrike over "~~u~~:" and remove "t:"

Page 13, line 15, remove the overstrike over "~~v~~:" and remove "u:"

Page 13, line 16, remove the overstrike over "~~w~~:" and remove "v:"

Page 13, line 17, remove the overstrike over "~~x~~:" and remove "w:"

Page 13, line 18, remove the overstrike over "~~y~~:" and remove "x:"

Page 13, line 19, remove the overstrike over "~~z~~:" and remove "y:"

Page 13, line 20, remove the overstrike over "~~aa~~:" and remove "z:"

Page 13, line 21, remove the overstrike over "~~bb~~:" and remove "aa:"

Page 13, line 22, remove the overstrike over "~~cc~~:" and remove "bb:"

Page 13, line 23, remove the overstrike over "~~dd~~:" and remove "cc:"

Page 13, line 24, remove the overstrike over "~~ee~~:" and remove "dd:"

Page 13, line 25, remove the overstrike over "~~ff~~:" and remove "ee:"

Page 13, line 26, remove the overstrike over "~~gg~~:" and remove "ff:"

Page 13, line 27, remove the overstrike over "~~hh~~:" and remove "gg:"

Page 13, line 28, remove the overstrike over "~~ii~~:" and remove "hh:"

Page 13, line 29, remove the overstrike over "~~jj~~:" and remove "ii:"

Page 13, line 30, remove the overstrike over "~~kk~~:" and remove "jj:"

Page 13, line 31, remove the overstrike over "H." and remove "kk."

Page 14, line 1, remove the overstrike over "~~mm~~." and remove "ll."

Page 14, line 2, remove the overstrike over "~~nn~~." and remove "mm."

Page 14, line 3, remove the overstrike over "~~oo~~." and remove "nn."

Page 14, line 4, remove the overstrike over "~~pp~~." and remove "oo."

Page 14, line 5, remove the overstrike over "~~qq~~." and remove "pp."

Page 14, line 6, remove the overstrike over "~~rr~~." and remove "qq."

Page 14, line 7, remove the overstrike over "~~ss~~." and remove "rr."

Page 14, line 9, replace "ss." with "tt."

Page 14, line 10, replace "tt." with "uu."

Page 14, line 11, replace "uu." with "vv."

Page 14, line 12, replace "vv." with "ww."

Page 14, line 13, replace "ww." with "xx."

Page 14, line 14, replace "xx." with "yy."

Page 16, line 2, remove "2782"

Renumber accordingly

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1063: Transportation Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1063 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1103: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Herbel, Chairman) recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1103 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1118: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price, Chairman) recommends **AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS** and when so amended, recommends **DO PASS** (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1118 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 3, line 27, replace "that" with "another"

Renumber accordingly

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

Reps. Svedjan, Dietrich, Metcalf and Sens. Erbele, Holmberg, Mathern introduced:

HB 1350: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-15-35 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to postgraduate medical residency training program pharmacies. Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

Reps. Kreidt, Pietsch, Pollert and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1351: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 50-24.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to claims against medical assistance recipients' estates. Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

Reps. Brandenburg, Headland, Kretschmar, Pollert and Sens. Erbele, Wanzek introduced:

HB 1352: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 39-12-05.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a ten percent weight permit for certain vehicles. Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

Reps. Wrangham, Boehning introduced:

HB 1353: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 23-12-09, subsection 2 of section 23-12-10, and subsection 2 of section 23-12-10.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exemptions from smoking restrictions and local government enforcement of smoking restrictions.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Wald, Aarsvold and Sens. Klein, Oehlke, Tallackson introduced:

HB 1354: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 26.1-23-04 and 26.1-23-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to property damage payments from the unsatisfied judgment fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee**.

Reps. Klemin, Carlisle, Monson and Sens. Dever, Kilzer, Lyson introduced:

HB 1355: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 31-13-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to persons subject to DNA testing.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee**.

Reps. Conrad, Hanson, Wieland and Sens. Taylor, Warner introduced:

HB 1356: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 20.1-01-21 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to hunting near school buildings.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Natural Resources Committee**.

Reps. Dahl, Heller, Owens and Sens. Freborg, Hacker, J. Lee introduced:

HB 1357: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 12.1-27.2-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the penalty for possession of materials that include sexual conduct by a minor; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee**.

Reps. Carlson, Delmore, Weiler and Sens. Nothing, O'Connell, Tollefson introduced:

HB 1358: A BILL for an Act to create and enact sections 57-36-02.1, 57-36-03.1, 57-36-03.2, 57-36-03.3, 57-36-05.3, 57-36-08.1, 57-36-08.2, and 57-36-13.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to tax stamping of cigarette packs; to amend and reenact section 57-36-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to tobacco products tax definitions; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Finance and Taxation Committee**.

Reps. Belter, Aarsvold, D. Johnson and Sens. Klein, G. Lee introduced:

HB 1359: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-21 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to rear-end protection of trucks.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

Reps. Headland, Brandenburg, Pollert and Sens. Erbele, Klein, Wanzek introduced:

HB 1360: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 60-10-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to investment of the credit-sale contract indemnity fund; and to provide a continuing appropriation.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Agriculture Committee**.

Rep. Kingsbury and Sen. Anderson introduced:

HB 1361: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the adjutant general for maintenance and repair of political subdivision-owned armories through matching grants; and to provide for a report to the budget section.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Nelson, Boe, Damschen and Sens. O'Connell, Olafson introduced:

HB 1362: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 39-24-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to out-of-state snowmobile registration fees.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

Reps. Nelson, Kreidt, Weisz and Sens. Holmberg, Triplett introduced:

HB 1363: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 49 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the decommissioning of commercial wind energy facilities.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Natural Resources Committee**.

Reps. Nelson, Hanson, Pollert and Sens. Heitkamp, Lyson introduced:

HB 1364: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 20.1-03-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to big game hunting license fees.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Natural Resources Committee**.

Reps. Belter, Kerzman and Sens. Christmann, O'Connell introduced:

HB 1365: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 57-39.2-04.2 and 57-40.2-04.2, subsections 3 and 11 of section 57-60-01, subsections 2, 3, and 5 of section 57-60-02, sections 57-60-06 and 57-60-07, and subsection 1 of section 57-60-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of power plant, repowering, and coal conversion facility for sales, use, and privilege tax purposes, the imposition of taxes on coal conversion facilities, the powers of the tax commissioner, and allocation of revenue from coal conversion facilities; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Finance and Taxation Committee**.

Reps. Keiser, Dosch, N. Johnson, Kasper and Sens. Hacker, Klein introduced:

HB 1366: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 26.1-27.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibited practices by pharmacy benefits managers; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

Reps. Uglem, Griffin, Kretschmar, Wrangham and Sen. Wardner introduced:

HB 1367: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivision a of subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the games of chance that may be conducted by licensed organizations at a single site.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee**.

Reps. Kempenich, Weisz and Sens. Bowman, G. Lee introduced:

HB 1368: A BILL for an Act to create a highway funding stabilization fund; and to provide for a transfer and appropriation from the permanent oil tax trust fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

Reps. Clark, Boe, Dietrich, Haas and Sen. Krebsbach introduced:

HB 1369: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 6-02-01 and section 6-05-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to use of terms for bank, annuity, safe deposit, surety, and trust company regulation purposes.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee**.

Reps. Vigesaa, Kingsbury, Mueller, Solberg and Sens. Krauter, Olafson introduced:

HB 1370: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for afterschool learning program grants.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Education Committee**.

Reps. Vig, Nelson and Sens. Triplett, Wardner introduced:

HB 1371: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 11-11.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to per diem compensation for members of job development authority boards of directors.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee**.

Reps. Wolf, Haas and Sens. Bakke, G. Lee, Potter introduced:

HB 1372: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for a teacher mentoring program.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Education Committee**.

Reps. Keiser, Haas and Sens. Dever, Krebsbach introduced:

HB 1373: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 16.1-06-05, and sections 16.1-06-14, 16.1-11-27, and 16.1-13-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the arrangement of names on the ballot.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Boehning, Haas, Headland and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1374: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 16.1-16-01 and 16.1-16-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to election recounts.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Brandenburg, Grande, Haas, Kasper and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1375: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 16.1-08.1-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to state political party convention statements; and to amend and reenact subsection 11 of section 16.1-08.1-01, sections 16.1-08.1-03.2 and 16.1-08.1-03.3, subsections 1 and 4 of section 16.1-08.1-03.9, subsections 2, 3, 4, and 5 of section 16.1-08.1-03.11, section 16.1-08.1-05, and subsection 1 of section 16.1-08.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to campaign finance.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Grande, Brandenburg, Haas, Hatlestad and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1376: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 16.1-10-04 and 16.1-10-06.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to corrupt election practices.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Grande, Haas, Heller, Kasper and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1377: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 16.1-15-06 and 16.1-15-08, subsection 6 of section 16.1-15-09, sections 16.1-15-13, 16.1-15-15, 16.1-15-19, 16.1-15-22, 16.1-15-25, and 16.1-15-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to canvassing elections.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Haas, L. Meier and Sens. Dever, Krebsbach introduced:

HB 1378: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 16.1-04-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to polling places; and to provide a penalty.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. L. Meier, Grande, Haas and Sens. Dever, Krebsbach introduced:

HB 1379: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivisions d and e of subsection 1 of section 16.1-12-02.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to write-in vote thresholds.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. L. Meier, Haas, Weiler and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1380: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 16.1-01-02.2 and 16.1-01-03, subsection 4 of section 16.1-01-04, section 16.1-01-05.1, and subsections 1 and 2 of section 16.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to general procedures for elections.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. Grande, Brandenburg, Haas, Sukut and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1381: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-10-05, 11-13-01, and 11-14-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to term commencement for county officers.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. L. Meier, Haas, Weiler and Sen. Dever introduced:

HB 1382: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 4-08-06 and 44-02-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to county election filing dates.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. L. Meier, Haas and Sens. Dever, Potter introduced:

HB 1383: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 15.1-09-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to precincts for school board elections.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Government and Veterans Affairs Committee**.

Reps. S. Meyer, DeKrey, Solberg introduced:

HB 1384: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 36-09-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the brands placed on horses.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Agriculture Committee**.

Reps. Zaiser, DeKrey, Griffin, N. Johnson, Thorpe, Wall introduced:

HB 1385: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 52-08.1-01 and subsection 1 of section 52-08.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to eligibility to receive workforce 20/20 training.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Industry, Business and Labor Committee**.

Reps. Herbel, Onstad and Sen. Warner introduced:

HB 1386: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 58-06-02, 58-07-01, and 58-08-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the compensation of township officers.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee**.

Reps. Bellew, Wieland introduced:

HB 1387: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 27-01-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to financing of district courts.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee**.

Reps. Dosch, Onstad and Sens. Bowman, Wardner introduced:

HB 1388: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a logo sign program.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Transportation Committee**.

Reps. Pinkerton, Bellew, Ekstrom, Hunsakor, Price and Sens. Dever, O'Connell introduced:

HB 1389: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 23-15-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the prohibition of certain fireworks.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Judiciary Committee**.

Reps. Kerzman, Wald and Sen. Krauter introduced:

HB 1390: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 50-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to liability insurance coverage for damage caused by foster children.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Human Services Committee**.

Reps. Ekstrom, Clark, Wall and Sens. Mathern, Nelson introduced:

HB 1391: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for the development of a regional creative arts center.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee**.

Reps. D. Johnson, Damschen, Haas and Sens. Erbele, Klein, Triplett introduced:

HB 1392: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 58-03-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the penalty for violation of zoning regulations in townships.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Political Subdivisions Committee**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Monson's motion.

Buell J. Reich, Chief Clerk

